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Beihai

Beihai Park is located in the center of downtown Beijing. To
its south is Zhongnanhai Lakes, to its north is Shishahai Lake, to
its east is Jingshan Park and not far to its southeast is the Palace
Museum. Of the 68.2 hectares of the park water surface takes up
38.9 hectares. Beihai Park is acclaimed as the “first imperial
garden in the world”. Its construction displays the highest level of
gardening art in ancient China. Today the public park is a famous
tourist attraction for its luxuriant hills, clear water and ancient
buildings.

In the early 10th century Qidan, a nomadic tribe in the
northeast, established the Liao Dynasty (907—1125), and began to
encroach on the territory of the Song Dynasty in central China. It
took the city of Ji (present—day Beijing) and made it its secondary
capital. The area of today’s Beihai Park was on the course of the
Yongding River. There was a lake called Jinhai (Golden Sea). Wil-
low trees lined the the lake shore and in summer lotus flowers dot-
ted the water. Water birds were many. The emperor of the Liao
Dynasty liked to come here to relax. For this the court redecorated
the place and turned it an amusement ground for the royal family.

A century later another nomadic people called Nuzhen had
become powerful enough to found the Jin Dynasty (1115-1234)
and moved its capital to Beijing in 1153 (known then as Zhongdu).
In 1161 Wanyan Yong ascended the throne to become Emperor Shi
Zong of the Jin Dynasty. In 1164 he signed the “Peace Agree-
ment of Longxing” with the Southern Song Dynasty. For the next
30 years there was no fighting between the two states. Wanyan
Yong began to renovate Jinhai Lake on a large scale, building three
small islands with the earth dredged from the lake to represent the
three islands of immortality — Penglai, Fangzhang and Yingzhou
in the East Sea. As many other emperors, Wanyan believed in im-
mortality too. The three islands were Qionghua and the Circular
City in Beihai, and Xishantai in Zhongnanhai. Palatial structures
were built and flowers and trees were planted on the islands.
Rockeries in the Genyue Garden in Bianliang (present—day
Kaifeng in Henan Province which used to be the national capital of
the Northern Song Dynasty) were moved to the islands. A tempo-
rary palace named Taining was built for the royal family. It em-
bracedtoday’s Beihai, Zhonghai and most part of their western and
eastern shores. Guanghan Hall rose magestically on top of
Qionghua Islet. The *Notes on Old Anecdotes” records Eight



Grand Sights in Beijing. Two were in Beihai — * Autumn Wind
over Taiye Lake” and * Spring Shade on Qionghua Islet”,

The Mongols drove the Jin rulers out of Beijing 100 years later
and established the Yuan Dynasty (1206—1368). They renamed
Beijing as Dadu. Emperor Shi Zu (Kublai Khan, 1260—1294) or-
dered three renovations on Qionghua Islet in the eight years be-
tween 1264 and 1271. The Taining Palace was restored and a num-
ber of structures were added, such as Renzhi Hall, Yanhe Hall,
Yuhong Pavilion and Jinlu Pavilion. The name of the island was
changed to the Hill of Longevity, also known as the Hill of 10,000
Years. A new structure — Guanghan Hall, on top of the island
was seven bays wide and 17 meters high. There were many precious
objects in the hall, including the # Jade Jar of Dushan” and “Pre-
cious  Jade Couch of Five Hills”. A magnificent imperial garden
took form during the Yuan Dynasty, with the Hill of Longevity as
the center.

During the Ming Dynasty (1368—1644), the Hill of Longevity
was renamed Xiyuan (Western Garden) and enlarged. During the
reign of Emperor Xuan Zong (Zhu Zhanji, 1426~1435), the Yitian
Hall was restored on the Circular City. A Circular Hall was built
on Xishzantai Islet to the south of the Circular City. In 1458 the
Taisu Hall was built on the northern shore of Beihai Lake. It was
also called “ Tin Hall” because the main building material was
tin. Later a great number of structures were buill on the eastern
and western shores of the lake, including Ninghe Hall. Yingcui
Hall and a farm for swans. Beihai became a major entertainment
ground for the imperial family of the Ming Dynasty. High court of-
ficials and famous scholars were often invited to enjoy the scenery,

Zhu Zaihou (Emperor Mu Zong, 1567-1572) resolved to abol-
ish all the extravagances of ihe court. After a month of his father’s
death he ordered all the name plaques in Xiyuan be taken off.
Gradually the grand halls and pavilions were torn down,

In the mid—17th century, Emperor Shi Zu of the Qing Dynasty
(1644-1661) made Beijing the national capital. At the request of
Tibetan lamas he built a white pagoda and a lamasery on
Qionghua Islet. The Hill of Longevity became known as White
Dagoba Hill. The stretch of water was divided into Nanhai (South-
ern Sea), Zhonghai (Central Sea) and Beihai (Northern Sea). The
Qing Dynasty was very powerful in the middle and late 18th centu-
ry. During 37 years during the reign of Emperor Qian Long 126
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grand halls and gateways, 35 pavilions, 25 bridges and 16 stone tab-
lets with inscriptions were built on White Dagoba Hill, Circular
City and the eastern and northern lake shores. Twelve old struc-
tures were renovated. The lakes were dredged. The three islands
were heightened with the earth dredged from the lakes. Docks and
ferries were added. The total cost came to 2.3 million taels of silver.
The imperial garden was made perfect.

Soldiers of the Eight—Power Allied Forces invaded and looted
Beijing in 1900. Xiyuan Garden was wept out of its treasures of
wooden furniture, calligraphical and painting works, and gold and
precious stone objects. The structures were destroyed. What we see
today in Beihai Park is the result of restoration projects carried out
by Beijing city government in many years. We can still make out
the magnitude of the original splendour.

One who enters Beihai from the southern gate sees first Qiong
Islet and the White Dagoba on it. The Yong'an Temple is located
on the southern side of Qiong Islet. Its halls and compounds are
hidden in ancient trees. Smaller groups of structures spread out on
either side of the temple to enhance the magnitude of the main
sight, 2 traditional technique in the construction of ancient gardens
in China. One may feel a bit squeezed in at the southern foot of
Qiong Islet. But when one stands at the top of it he will have a
panorama of openness and broadness. The structures on the north-
ern shore — Minor Western Heaven, Chengguan Hall, Heavenly
King Hall and Jingxinzhai — appear distinct in a strict geometrical
pattern along a central axis. The Five—Dragon Pavilions on the
lake present a scene as if from a traditional Chinese painting. The
Silkworm Altar, Painted Boat Studio, Haopujian are arranged
neally on the eastern shore amidst pine and cypress trees. There are
very few buildings on the eastern shore. [he disadvantage is made
up with trees and plants.

The main scenic spot of Qiong Tslet is connected with other at-
tractions by ferry boats and a marble bridge.

Beihai Park is an important cultural site under state
protection, For the past four decades the Beijing municipal gov-
ernment has allocated special funds for the maintenance and
redecoratica of major structures. In recent years a comprehensive
project has been going on to restore the scenic spots along the cen-
tral axis. Beihai appears more splendid to the numerous visitors.
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Yong'an Bridge The bridge of white marble link-
ing the Circular City and Qiong Islet was
built in the 13th century. Two archways stand on
either end of the bridge. One bears the inscription
of “Piled Clouds” and the other bears the inscrip-
tion of “Accumulated Emerald™.
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Qiong Islet The small island is connected with
the Circular City by Yong'an Bridge. A giant
white dagoba rises on top of it. In summer lotus
blossoms bloem in the lake surrounding the is-

land.
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Front gate of Yong'an Temple The front gate of
Yong'an Temple has three openings with crim-

son walls and a glazed ule roof. In front of the
gate there are sculptures of divine cranes and
turtles, symbols of longevity.
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Bell and Drum Towers The Bell Tower and
Drum Tower stand inside the front gate of
Yong'an Temple: the Bell Tower on the east and
Drum Tower on the west. When the emperor
came Lo worship the Buddha the bell and drum
were struck and incense sticks were lit.
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Yong'an Bell The bronze bell hangs
from the ceiling of the Bell Tower.
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Hall of the Wheel of Law The first hall in
Yong'an Temple has five sections and a single
layer of eaves, A small pagoda of glazed tiles
rises atop the roof in the middle. Flanking the

pagoda there are relief carvings of dragons play-
ing with a pearl, also made of glazed tiles.
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Inside the Hall of the Wheel of Law Sakyamuni
15 seated in the middle. The Eight Great
Bodhisativas and 18 Arhats stand on either side
of him.
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Archway of Purple Dragon Light The archway
behind the Hall of the Wheel of Law was built in

1751 during the Qing Dynasty. It has four pillars,
three tiers with eaves of yellow glazed tiles.
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Yinsheng Pavilion Another pavilion named
Di‘ai stands to its west. Yinsheng Pavilion houses
a square stone tablet inscribed with the “Note on
White Dagoba Hill” in four languages of Han,
Manchu, Mongol and Tibetan. Di'ai Pavilion
keeps a stone tablet inscribed with the “Note on
the Surroundings of Dagoba Hill”. Both inscrip-
tions were made during the reign of Emperor
Qian Long (1736=1795) of the Qing Dynasty.
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Wall Drawings in the Lankavatara Cave The
cave of two tiers was built with Taihu stones
from Kaifeng of Henan Province, Pictures on the
walls depict Buddhist stories,
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Kunlun Stome  Also known as “Genyue” because
this and the * Yucyun Stone” came from the
Genyue Garden in Kaifeng, Henan Province.
The inseriptions of the two stones’ names were
carved in the handwriting of Emperor Qian Long
of the Qing Dynasty,




